
1 
Yanceyville Town Council Minutes  
March 6th 2018 

 
MINUTES 

YANCEYVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
March 6th, 2018 

7:00 PM 
 
The meeting of the Town Council was held in the Council Chambers at the Yanceyville 
Municipal Services Building on March 6th, 2018 7:00 PM.  
 
Council members present: Alvin Foster- Mayor, Odessa Gwynn- Mayor Pro Tem, 
Margie Badgett-Lampkin, Brian Massey, and Keith Tatum. 
 
Staff:    Brian Collie- Town Manager/Clerk, Lee Farmer- Town Attorney, and Kamara 
Graves-Assistant Town Clerk 
 
Item 1: Call to Order 
 
Mayor Alvin Foster called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Meeting opened with a 
prayer.  He asked all to stand for the pledge of allegiance.  Mayor Foster also stated that 
the Yanceyville Town Council rules and procedures reflect the revisions of the North 
Carolina open meeting law of the North Carolina General Statues, a copy of the 
Yanceyville Town Council rules and procedures are available upon request. 
 
Item 2: Review and Adoption of Agenda – Mayor & Council 

 
Mayor Foster added Agenda Item 8a. Budget Calendar and Agenda Item 8b. Mayor’s 
Term to the Agenda. Mayor Foster asked Council for a motion to approve the agenda 
with the additions. Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to adopt the agenda with said 
additions. The motion was seconded by Councilman Massey and passed with a 
unanimous. 
   
Item 3: Consent Agenda- February 6th, 2018 Minutes 
 
Mayor Foster asked Council to review the minutes from the February 6th, 2018 Town 
Council Meeting. After a short review, Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to adopt 
the minutes from the February 6th, 2018 Town Council Meeting as presented. The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Massey and passed a unanimous vote. 
 
Item 4: Public Comment 
 
Mayor Foster asked, Town Manager Collie did anyone sign-up for Public Comments? 
Town Manager Collie, replied yes. Mayor Foster acknowledged, Mr. Julian Williamson.  
Mr. Julian Williamson of 198 Murphy Street, announced and invited Town Council and 
the Public to come out and support the Pearson Chapel AME Church, Pastor Barrington 
Ross of 222 Hwy 62 South on their 150th Church Anniversary on Sunday, March 18th 
2018. Morning Worship Service will begin at 11:00 am, and at 3:00pm the Fayetteville 



2 
Yanceyville Town Council Minutes  
March 6th 2018 

State University Choir will render a concert. Lunch will be served after the 11:00am 
worship service.   
 
Item 5: Piedmont Electric Helping Hand Foundation Grant Award  
 
Town Manager Collie stated that after the February Town Council Meeting he applied for 
a grant through Piedmont Electric Membership Corporation, which is the Piedmont 
Helping Hand Foundation. Town Manager Collie explained that Piedmont Electric had 
contacted him inquiring about the Town’s Wi-Fi Project. Piedmont Electric explained 
that if the project had an initial phase they would be able to provide up to $10,000 
towards the project. The grant would not require a matching fund.  On February 18th, 
2018 the Piedmont Electric Helping Hand Foundation through PEMC approved the Town 
of Yanceyville’s Internet Connectivity Pilot project request in the amount of $10,000. 
Town Manager Collie explained that this will allow the Town to go ahead and install Wi-
Fi antennas on the Municipal Building, and the Yanceyville Fire Department buildings 
that will provide free wireless internet coverage.  Town Manager Collie explained that 
Steve Brooks, Brooks Networking Service, LLC submitted an invoice in order to secure 
the grant for the project. Mr. Brooks explained that this project would essentially allow 
public Wi-Fi in both Town Hall, and the Fire Department Buildings. 
 
Town Manager Collie stated that he would need a motion to move forward with the 
Piedmont Electric Helping Hand Foundation Grant. 

 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to receive funding from the Piedmont 
Electric Helping Hand Foundation Grant. Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to 
receive funding from the Piedmont Electric Helping Hand Foundation Grant. The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Tatum and passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Item 6:  Town Wi-Fi Project Proposal -Brooks Network Services 
 
Town Manager Collie, stated that we have MR. Steve Brooks, Brooks Network Services, 
LLC here to discuss and give a summary of the update proposal as of March 4th, 2018. 
Town Manager Collie explained that in 2011 the Town started a Wi-Fi project with the 
end goal of providing the Town with free wireless internet. The Wi-Fi project lasted from 
2011 -2013. 

  
Town Manager Collie explained that Piedmont Electric has a Rural Economic 
Development Loan & Grant Program. He stated that it would be a great funding   source 
and opportunity to help fund the Town’s Wi-Fi project. He explained that the Town used 
this program to fund the Fire Department Expansion Project. It is a 0% interest 10-year 
loan program.  
 
Mr. Brooks stated that we have talked about the components needed for the Wi-Fi project 
over the last 18-24 months.  Mr. Brooks stated based on the recommendations of Town 
Council in reference to getting down more side streets off closer to residential homes he 



3 
Yanceyville Town Council Minutes  
March 6th 2018 

has updated the proposal looking at the higher density areas with more population to 
provide Wi-Fi. 
 
Mr. Brooks states as follows: 
 
Infrastructure Requirements -Public Wi-Fi – Town of Yanceyville  
In order to provide an efficient and time standing Public Wi-Fi network, it is 
recommended to install a network backbone that can sustain the emergence of future 
technologies. In this order, we plan to install Corning Single Mode Fiber at 72 and 36 
strand levels to support deployment of Public Wi-Fi for the Town of Yanceyville North 
Carolina. 
 
Does the Town of Yanceyville have access rights to current utility poles within the Town 
Limits? 

• Yes-NOTE: Duke Energy may impose fees, permits required or Make- ready fee. 
This proposal does not include any fees imposed by Duke Energy or any other 3rd 
party not recognized in this proposal.  
 

The Town of Yanceyville has provided contractual rights to Brooks Network Services, 
LLC to install and mount fiber cable and termination in an aerial fashion on existing 
utility infrastructure. 
 
Does the Town of Yanceyville have access rights to current County Facilities and 
Buildings? 

• Yes  
 

The Town of Yanceyville has provided contractual rights to Brooks Network Services, 
LLC to install and mount fiber cable and termination in an aerial fashion on existing 
utility infrastructure. 
 
Infrastructure Design  

Phase 1 
Corning Single Mode Fiber, 72 strand count will be installed in an aerial fashion from 
Yanceyville Town Hall along 1st street to Main Street. A junction point (FTP) will be set 
in place. This will be the primary fiber demarcation point. 
 
A 36-strand count fiber will be extended along Main Street to Main Street W then 
continue to Hooper Road and then to Wall Street. A turn will be made on Main Street to 
Court Square. 
 
A 12-strand count fiber will be installed from Wall Street to North Ave., then turn down 
Fifth Avenue to SR1586 and then turn down to North Avenue along Main Street W to 
Hopper Road and continue along Hooper to Main Street intersection, at which time it  
will terminate with Main Street to Wall Street. 
 



4 
Yanceyville Town Council Minutes  
March 6th 2018 

A 36- strand count fiber will be installed along Main Street to SR 1593 the Barco Street 
Intersection.  
 
There will be six future use installation loop locations for the 12 strand count fiber runs. 
 
This proposal includes over lashing, 10 secured PVC enclosures for power and fiber 
termination, inner duct for interior of Town Hall, interior building riser, labor, material 
and equipment for building the network infrastructure backbone for the Town of 
Yanceyville. 
 
Cisco Meraki Access points and gear will be installed in PVC enclosures with electrical 
access. Directional Sector antennae’s will be used to provide Public Wi-Fi coverage 
along the Main throughways and desire community support location of Yanceyville 
North Carolina. 
 
Mr. Brooks asked if there were any additional questions.  
 
Town Manager Collie explained that the Wi-Fi project ceased to exist since 2013, but the 
Town has set aside $15,000 yearly for this project. He noted this current budget year 
$20,000 was set aside. Town Manager Collie explained that if the Town would like to 
move forward with Piedmont Electric Rural Economic Development Loan/ Grant 
Program he would need Council to make a motion. 
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion. Councilman Massey made a motion to 
move forward with the proposal from Brooks Network Services, LLC for the purpose of 
applying for the Piedmont Electric Rural Economic Development Loan/ Grant Program  
The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Badgett-Lampkin and passed with a 
unanimous vote. 

  
Item 7: New Part- Time Position Discussion -Mayor Foster  
  
Mayor Foster suggested creating a new part-time position focused towards beautification 
of the Town. The position would work a minimum of eight hours to 16 hours per week 
focused on solely on trash and illegal sign removal throughout Town with in the public 
right of ways, and on all Town Property. 
 
Mayor Foster made a motion to direct Mr. Collie to proceed with securing someone for 
the part- time position to work on the beautification of the Town of Yanceyville. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Massey and passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Item 8: Pavilion Use Discussion- “Steers and Cheers” Festival  
 
Town Manager Collie explained that Town Council had a flyer for the proposed 1st 
Annual “Steers & Cheers Festival for June 16th 2018. He noted that several 
representatives with the committee are present tonight, through the Piedmont Progressive 
Farmers Group(PPFG), Caswell Local Foods Council (CCLFC) and Piedmont 



5 
Yanceyville Town Council Minutes  
March 6th 2018 

Community College (PCC), three local non-profit organizations. They’re requesting that 
the event be held at the Town’s Pavilion and they would like to sell and serve alcoholic 
beverages from regional craft breweries at the Event. On June 16th from 2-6 pm they are 
looking to celebrate rural North Carolina by roasting a whole steer, locally raised while 
enjoying regional beverages delicious sides with a local flair, live entertainment including 
music and agricultural demonstrations. Local farmers will also have interactive booths 
showcasing best practices for up and coming agriculturalists and farming enthusiasts. 
 
Town Manager Collie stated that our current pavilion use policy does not allow alcohol 
consumption. He explained it’s not uncommon for Cities and Towns to host or allow 
certain events to serve alcohol. Town Manager Collie stated that there are certain 
protocols that have to be in place before the event can occur. Town Manager Collie stated 
that he attached an article form the UNC School of Government title “Serving Alcohol at 
City or County Events: What are the Rules?” along with an example of the Town of 
Wake Forest’s alcoholic beverages policy. 
 
Town Manager Collie explained that it’s his understanding that this event is an Economic 
Development tool for this community. Town Manager Collie insisted that he feels this is 
a positive event for what the groups are trying to achieve. Mrs. Cori Lindsay stated that 
she would be more than happy to answer any questions about the event. 
 
Councilwoman Badgett- Lampkin asked if a special permit use required for this event? 
Attorney Farmer stated that there has to be a permit from the ABC Board to sell alcohol. 
Town Manager Collie noted that the applicant applying to use the Pavilion property 
would be responsible for any permits that needed to be obtained and must be presented to 
the Town prior to the event. Town Manager Collie stated if the Town would like to have 
this event or future events the Pavilion Use Policy would have to amended to allow 
events as such. Town Manager Collie recommended that events should be viewed on a 
case by case basis. The applicant would need to come before Town Council with the 
purpose, and goal of the event. The application will have to follow certain requirements, 
such as contacting the Caswell County Sheriff’s Department to have a law enforcement 
presence. Attorney Farmer stated that the applicant would have to show proof of Dram 
shop insurance, which would protect the Town from any liability issues before the event 
could take place. 
 
Mrs. Lindsay stated that they are very excited about sponsoring this event here in Caswell 
County to promote the agricultural industry. She stated they are looking to bring in local 
regional beer/ wine vendors and roasting the whole steer. She stated that they are aware 
of the different permits that we will have to obtained prior to hosting the event. Mrs. 
Lindsay stated that this is our first step in securing a date and a venue. 
 
Town Manager Collie asked what levels of control as to the consumption of alcohol have 
you discussed? Mrs. Lindsay stated they have discussed several options on the control of 
alcohol consumption including figuring out a perimeter area, having it t barricaded to 
make sure that people are staying in certain areas, and not just walking around. They also 
discussed wrist bands. 



6 
Yanceyville Town Council Minutes  
March 6th 2018 

 
Mayor Foster stated that we would not be able to make a decision tonight without seeing 
what type of provisions we would have to make to the Pavilion Use Policy as well as hear 
from the public. 
 
Mayor Foster suggested recessing the meeting for two weeks. Town Council decided to 
recess the meeting until March 20th, 2018. 
 
Item 8 a. Budget Calendar  
 
Town Manager Collie updated Town Council on the 2018-2019 Budget Calendar. He 
stated as in years past Town Council has meet in the month of April on each Thursday of 
the month. The first budget workshop is scheduled for April 5th, 2018 at 6pm to 
discussing basics, outline priorities, etc. Other dates for Budget Calendar 2018-2019 
schedule listed below: 
 
April 12th 6pm -General Fund Review 
April 19th 6pm -Enterprise Fund 
April 26th 6pm- Optional  
May 1st   6pm-  Town Council Meeting Budget is announced to the public (final / minor  

             adjustment can be made)  
June 5th Town Council Meeting Public Hearing, Budget Presentation, Council Adoption   
 
Town Manager Collie noted that the meeting listed above are Special Meetings, and if the 
dates have to be changed he will need a 48- hour notice to post accordingly.  
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion. Councilman Massey made a motion to 
adopt the 2018-2019 Budget Calendar schedule with flexibility if a date or time has to be 
changed. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn and passed with a 
unanimous vote. 
 
Item 8 b. Mayor Term   
 
Mayor Foster stated that in the past Town Council has discussed the Mayor’s Electoral 
Term, which is currently two years changing back to four years as it was when the Town 
was first incorporated, and as the electoral term of other Town Council Members. 
Mayor Foster stated that the Four-Year Term wouldn’t be effective until the next 
election. Mayor Foster stated that Town Manager Collie would have to set a Public 
Hearing, after the Public Hearing at the next regular scheduled Town Council Meeting 
Town Council would vote to change the Term. Mayor Foster asked Council for a 
consensus, Town Council agreed. Mayor Foster asked Town Manager Collie to set the 
Public Hearing for April 3rd, 2018. 
 
 
 
 



7 
Yanceyville Town Council Minutes  
March 6th 2018 

Item 9: Town Manager Report  
 
Town Manager Collie announced that the Town of Milton will be hosting the next Joint 
Council Meeting scheduled for Thursday March 15th, 2018 at 6:00 pm. 
 
Town Manager Collie also updated Town Council on potential dates for the Town 
Council Retreat Tuesday, March 27th, 2018 or Thursday March 29th, 2018. The Town 
Council Retreat would provide an opportunity for board members to learn more about 
each other’s, motivations, interests, and work preferences, clarify their mutual 
expectation, and goals. Town Manager Collie stated that the meeting would have to be 
advertised. Mayor Foster suggested Tuesday, March 27th, 2018 10am -4pm.  
 
Town Manager Collie also updated Town Council on the Veterans Memorial Flag Poles. 
Town Manager Collies stated that in a discussion with Mr. Fred Smith there are flag 
poles available to the Town that he can acquire the flag poles are free of charge and can 
be added to the Veterans, Fire Safety and Law Enforcement Memorial. He stated that that 
the flag poles aren’t permanent you would be able to put them up for specific events such 
as Veterans Day, Fourth of July, and Memorial Day. Mayor Foster added that Mr. Smith 
will have more details as to the height of the poles after the 16th of the month. 
 
Town Manager Collie stated that in recent discussion with the Sheriff being that the 
Town does not have a Police Department the Town really doesn’t know the 
crime/incident reports that happen within the Town of Yanceyville. Town Manager 
Collie suggested that the Sheriff’s Department provide an incident log to the Town. The 
log would not give specifics, but it will give Town Council a general idea of what crimes/ 
incidents that are happening in Town. He stated that Sergeant McLean, Caswell County 
Sheriff’s Department would generate a report monthly or quarterly. 
 
Item 10: Closed Session- General Statutes 143-318.11 Economic Development and 
Real Estate  
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to go into Closed Session General 
Statues 143-318.11. Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to go into closed session.  
The motion was seconded by Councilman Tatum and passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to come out of Closed Session General 
Statues 143-318.11. Mayor Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to come out of Closed 
Session.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Massey with a unanimous vote. 
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to go back into Regular Session. Mayor 
Pro Tem Gwynn made a motion to go back into Regular Session. The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Massey and passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
 Mayor Foster stated that nothing had been discussed during Closed Session that needed 
to be reported at this time. 
 



8 
Yanceyville Town Council Minutes  
March 6th 2018 

 
Item 11: Informal Discussion/ Public Comment – Discussion & Comments must  
directly relate to agenda items  
 
Mr. Albert Tardy addressed Item 7: New Part- Time Position Discussion. Mr. Tardy 
stated that he hasn’t seen a Town owned trash can within the Town limits. He added that 
he spends a lot morning picking up trash in front of his home. 
 
Mayor Foster agreed with Mr. Tardy that a lot of people do pick up trash but it usually in 
front of their homes. Mayor Foster added that at one time there were Town owned trash 
cans around the downtown area, but people vandalized them.  
 
Mr. Tardy stated that in addition to the part time position, may the Town should consider 
adding trash cans throughout the Town to help with the littering problems. 
 
Item 12: Recess 
 
Mayor Foster asked Town Council for a motion to recess the Town Council Meeting until 
March 20th, 2018 at 7pm. After no further discussion, Councilman Tatum made a motion 
to recess the Meeting until March 20th, 2018 at 7pm. Councilman Massey seconded the 
motion that passed with a unanimous vote.   
 
Brian Collie, Town Manager/Clerk, and Kamara Graves, Assistant Town Clerk prepared 
the above minutes.  They represent a brief description of those matters that were 
addressed at this meeting.  A detailed account of this meeting is available for review on 
tape at the Yanceyville Municipal Services Building. 
 
Respectively Submitted: 

 
____________________________________________________ 
Alvin Foster, Mayor  
 
____________________________________________________ 
Brian Collie, Town Manager / Clerk 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Kamara Graves, Assistant Town Clerk 
 


